
 UPPER MERION TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
November 13, 2019 

7:00 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
2. ATTENDANCE 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: October 09, 2019  

 
4. NEW BUSINESS 

 
5. EXECUTIVE SECRETARY’S REPORT 

 
6. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

 
7. SOLICITOR’S REPORT 

 
8. DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS REPORT 

 
9. FINANCIAL REPORT 

 
10. REQUISITION APPROVALS: November 13, 2019 in the amount of $86,736.44 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 



UMTA Page 1 10/09/2019  
   

UPPER MERION TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY  
OCTOBER 9, 2019 

 
The members of the Upper Merion Transportation Authority met for their reorganization and regular 
meeting on Wednesday, October 9, 2019 in the Township Building, 175 West Valley Forge Road, 
King of Prussia, PA. The meeting was called to order at 7:01 p.m. and commenced with the pledge 
of allegiance.  
 
 
ATTENDANCE 
Tom Kohler, Chairman 
Lou Zotti, Vice-Chairman 
Carlton Stuart, Secretary  
Marvin Meneeley, Treasurer  
Andrew Bahmueller, Assistant Secretary/Treasurer 
Anthony Hamaday, Executive Secretary 
Nicholas Hiriak, Director of Finance  
Greg Philips, BOS Liaison 
Missy Morales, Staff Liaison 
Geoff Hickman, Director of Public Works 
Noah Marlier, Hamburg, Rubin, Mullin, Maxwell & Lupin, PC 
Jack Smyth, Jr., P.E., Consulting Engineers, Boles Smyth Associates, Inc., (BSA) 
 
MEETING MINUTES APPROVAL:  
It was moved by Mr. Meneeley, seconded by Mr. Stuart, all voting “Aye” to approve the meeting 
minutes of September 11, 2019 as submitted.  None opposed.  Motion approved 5-0. 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
Mr. Bahmueller asked at what point does the Authority start looking beyond the current projects and 
Mr. Kohler and Mr. Smyth responded the 209 Study. First to identify the existing intersections that 
need to be studied, do a land use report area, evaluate those intersections as they stand now, 
forecast through planning the expected growth, and then to prioritize the projects. Mr. Kohler noted 
the 209 Study is recommended every so many years and stated it is a good idea to reassess the 
projects.  
 
Mr. Kohler asked for the status of the RFP and Mr. Smyth responded the RFP can be ready for the 
next meeting.  
 
EXECUTIVE SECRETARY’S REPORT-  
Mr. Hamaday reported a meeting with PennDOT was held regarding a status update. PennDOT has 
a separate agreement with The Villages and they are looking for the Township’s help and vice versa 
to make sure we secure any remaining funds that we believe The Villages or Realen, in this case, 
owes specifically for that left turn lane for the Turn Pike. Mr. Marlier stated PennDOT will be 
communicating with Realen ensuring the Township, the Authority receives as much funding as 
Realen is required to give.   
 
 
 
 
 



UMTA Page 2 10/09/2019  
   

ENGINEER’S REPORT 
Relocated North Gulph Road, SR 0023 Section 2NG 
(Including Granite Block Restoration at Valley Forge Monument)  
Mr. Smyth stated the next Status Meeting for this project is scheduled for October 17, 2019.  
BSA coordinated with the National Park Service (NPS) to advance concurrence letters for two 
PennDOT processes to obtain Bid Package approval. The NPS drafted a letter for signature by 
Northeast Regional (NER) Director to accept the changes in the project since the original 
environmental clearance approval (2007) to allow for the updated concurrence. A second Letter of 
Consent from the NPS to FHWA was prepared to initiate the process for the Federal Land Transfer 
required to obtain Right-of-Way (ROW) Certification for the project. In regards to the masonry culvert 
talked about in the last meeting, it turned out an emergency repair needed to be made to that culvert 
which is right at the Route 23 and County Line Road intersection. In the process of resubmitting to 
PennDOT a memorandum was submitted on October 3, 2019 stated that even though the culvert 
was designated as a minor contributing feature to the National Park, the work that is being done will 
not have an adverse effect. The landscape architects are revising their plans. It was noted since this 
project is with the National Park Service, the landscape architects were involved early on. BSA 
submitted the draft Categorial Exclusion Evaluation (CEE) and the team will receive updates on the 
review at the October 17th status meeting. Coordination with the NPS to determine the needs for the 
quantity of new granite curb and blocks for the Gulph Road Restoration Project. BSA is advancing 
the Traffic Control Plan for the Gulph Road Restoration Project in consultation with the NPS. 
 
SR 0023, Section TCB – PA 23 Trout Creek Bridge 
Mr. Smyth stated the Safety Review which is the preliminary engineering milestone touch point as 
well as coordinating with PennDOT to get them the information they need because they are in the 
process and have put out a planned project advertisement on their system. Once it is put out to 
PennDOT, they will take over the project completely, fees included. It was noted that one of the 
biggest things for this project is the utility relocations. 
 
Church Road Bridge over SEPTA Route 100 Line 
Mr. Smyth stated the ROW plan is ready for signature. The ROW plan is only for the two temporary 
construction easements that were obtained for the project from Mastercola and SEPTA. BSA has 
received the outstanding 4181-UC Forms from affected utility companies to complete the Utility 
Clearance (Form D-419). Mr. Hamaday signed the Utility Clearance (Form D-419). BSA submitted 
the Pre-Plans, Specifications & Estimate (Pre-PS&E) which is currently under review at PennDOT. 
The final items are the Traffic Control Plan is outstanding as an approval, the Categorical Exclusion 
Reevaluation is in environmental manager review and Gannett Fleming will respond directly to them 
and the Final Structure Plans. PennDOT will not grant Railroad Clearance without the executed 
agreement and SEPTA stated that the agreement requires SEPTA Board approval. The project team 
is pursuing a “Letter of Intent” to see if Railroad Clearance can be obtained while awaiting SEPTA 
Board Approval of the agreement. Solicitor will be following up. 
 
Prince Frederick Extension (PFE) 
Continued progression through the land development process on the Township side and on the 
Chester Valley Trail on the Montgomery County side. Both sides are moving forward. BSA has been 
continually received requests certain things as it relates to the signalized intersection, making sure 
they can maintain access during construction, and grading plans. Continued coordination with the 
Glasgow Tract development team. 
 
 
 



UMTA Page 3 10/09/2019  
   

Potential New PA Turnpike Interchange at Henderson Road 
Continued coordination on the updated interchange design so as not to preclude the SEPTA Route 
100 Line. DVRPC is finishing up their No Build projections for Henderson Road and starting to get 
into the Build projections for Potential Henderson Road Interchange.  
 
SOLICITOR’S REPORT-  
A meeting was held with Realen a few weeks ago regarding the Traffic Impact Fees for some of the 
specific properties they want to close out. These properties are very similar to the JBG Properties 
only, JBG paid Traffic Impact Fees and these properties have not. Mr. Marlier stated he would 
contact Mr. Rob Loeper and Mr. Smyth to possibly have a resolution ready for next month.     
 
FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
Mr. Hiriak reported interest earnings for the month. The PIB Loan is paid off on August 29, 2022 and 
the remaining balance is about $1.15 million.  
 
REQUISITIONS – October 9, 2019  
 

Boles, Smyth Assoc., Inc.  $     6,468.06  Relocation of North Gulph Road (SR 
3039) for Period 8-1-19 thru 8-31-19 
INVOICE #69 

     
Boles, Smyth Assoc., Inc.  $    1,286.11  Trout Creek Bridge Replacement 

Project for Period 8-1-19 thru 8-31-19 
INVOICE #42 

     
TOTAL:  $7,754.17  

 
Authority Action: 
 
It was moved by Mr. Zotti, seconded by Mr. Stuart, all voting “Aye” to approve the October 9, 2019 
requisitions in the amount of $7,754.17. None opposed.  Motion approved 5-0.  
 
ADDITIONAL BUSINESS - None.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Authority, the meeting adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
        ______________________ 
        THOMAS KOHLER 
        CHAIRMAN       
 
 
mm 
Minutes Approved: 
Minutes Entered: 























































 

{00988169;v1} 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE: _____________   AGREEMENT NO. ____________ 
COUNTY: MONTGOMERY     FID NO. _____________________ 
MUNICIPALITY: UPPER MERION   SAP VENDOR NO. ____________ 
SEPTA FILE NO. _______________   MPMS NO. ___________________ 

 
REIMBURSEMENTAGREEMENT 

FOR THE UPPER MERION TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY’S  
RECONSTRUCTION OF THE EAST CHURCH ROAD BRIDGE 

 

THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into on the ____ day of 
___________________, 2019 (“Effective Date”) by and between the Upper Merion 
Transportation Authority (“Authority”) and Southeastern Pennsylvania Transportation 
Authority, a body corporate and politic that exercises the public powers of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as an agency and instrumentality thereof with its principal 
office located at 1234 Market Street, 10th floor, Philadelphia, PA 19107-37809 (“SEPTA”).  
Herein each is a “Party” and are collectively the “Parties.” 

BACKGROUND 

WHEREAS, the Authority plans to reconstruct the East Church Road Bridge (the 
“Project”), which is part of a local road known as East Church Road in Upper Merion 
Township (in Montgomery County, PA); 

WHEREAS, the East Church Road Bridge (the “Bridge”) is comprised of a (1) bridge 
superstructure that is part of the roadway and aerially crosses a transit right-of-way 
(“ROW”; at approximately at milepost 11.47) that is owned by Norfolk Southern Railway 
(“NS”) and is used by SEPTA for its Norristown High Speed Line (“NHSL”) subject to a 
long-term trackage rights agreement; and (2) of bridge substructure portions, which support 
the superstructure, that straddle the ROW and sit upon real property that (i) is owned by 
Upper Merion Township and (ii) is adjacent to ROW property some of which is owned by 
SEPTA and some is owned by NS (the Bridge, the ROWs, and surrounding areas are 
depicted on the project plan diagram (the “Plan”) that is attached as Exhibit A and is hereby 
incorporated into and made a part of the Agreement);  

WHEREAS, a Public Utility Commission (“PUC”) Order dated September 9, 1968 
(Complaint Docket No. 18453) held that SEPTA is responsible for the maintenance of the 
Bridge substructure and that Upper Merion Township is responsible for the Bridge 
superstructure; however SEPTA has taken the position that the PUC does not have 
jurisdiction over aerial crossings of the NHSL; nevertheless, without admission, waiver, or 



{00988169;v1}2 
 

prejudice with regard to SEPTA’s position, SEPTA will not formally dispute the holding 
of the PUC Order with respect to the arrangements established by and under this 
Agreement; 

WHEREAS, the Authority’s planned work for the Bridge involves, in general, 
removing and replacing the entire decking of the superstructure, removing the existing 
water and gas lines from the superstructure, constructing a temporary utility bridge and 
support structure (the “Utility Bridge”) for the water line, demolishing and reconstructing 
the Bridge superstructure and substructure and installing a new water and gas line on the 
new superstructure (collectively and generally, herein the “Authority Work”) as depicted 
on the Plan that is Exhibit A,  

WHEREAS, because the Bridge aerially crosses the NHSL and some of the Authority 
Work will necessitate accessing and working on SEPTA property near portions of the 
substructure, the Authority has requested that SEPTA grant the Authority a temporary 
construction easement(“TCE”) to access and use two parcels on the ground and a strip of 
airspace (collectively herein the “SEPTA Premises”). SEPTA executed a TCE on March 
28, 2019, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit B. 

WHEREAS, the Authority has also requested that SEPTA provide the support services 
necessary to perform engineering review of the Project Plan and schedule, coordinate the 
Authority’s Work with SEPTA’s operations on the NHSL, and provide proper protections 
(such as flagging) as deemed necessary by SEPTA for the Project work (generally and 
collectively, herein the “Support Services”); 

WHEREAS, the proper completion of the Project may also necessitate that some work 
be performed specifically on SEPTA transit facilities (i.e. moving power lines or work on 
other infrastructure or facilities of SEPTA), and work on transit facilities must be 
performed by SEPTA, therefore the Authority may need to request that SEPTA perform 
certain construction-type work for the project in addition to the Support Services (herein 
any construction type work performed by SEPTA shall be referred to as “Additional 
SEPTA Work”; and the term “SEPTA Services” shall refer to collectively the Support 
Services and the Additional SEPTA Work). 

WHEREAS, the Authority’s Project will be financed by funding from Pennsylvania 
Department of Transportation (“PennDOT”) STU/A-183 Program, Federal Highway 
funds from the United States Department of Transportation (“USDOT”; Federal Project 
#X064-204), Montgomery County, and Upper Merion Transportation Authority; and 



{00988169;v1}3 
 

therefore the work under the Project must comply with the various applicable regulations 
and requirements, some of which are specifically referenced herein; 

WHEREAS, once reconstruction of the Bridge has been completed, the Authority shall 
assume the maintenance responsibility for the substructure of the Bridge, thereby making 
the Authority responsible for the maintenance of the entirety of the Bridge including both 
the superstructure and the substructure; 

WHEREAS, SEPTA has granted the TCE to the Authority without fee to the Authority, 
as consideration for the Authority’s willingness to assume the ongoing maintenance of the 
Bridge substructure and agreeing to a permanent assumption of responsibility for all bridge 
maintenance and repair. 

WHEREAS, SEPTA has agreed to perform the SEPTA Services for the Project and 
the Authority will reimburse SEPTA in accordance with the rates provided in Exhibit C, 
for the costs SEPTA incurs in performing the SEPTA Services; and a list of the anticipated 
and estimated Support Services and the associated estimated costs therefor, as well as the 
rates for other work that may be performed as Additional SEPTA Work, have been 
included in the attached Exhibit C, which is hereby incorporated into and made a part of 
the Agreement; 

WHEREAS, the Authority and SEPTA desire to enter into this Agreement to 
memorialize and commit to the understanding between them regarding the Authority’s 
performance of the Project and SEPTA performance of the SEPTA Services, and the 
project coordination and cooperation to be afforded by both the Authority and SEPTA for 
the successful performance of the Project, in accordance with and subject to the terms and 
conditions set forth herein. 

WHEREAS, the Parties agree that 23 CFR Part 140, Subpart I and 23 CFR Part 646, 
Subpart B are incorporated herein by reference 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 
herein, and other good and valuable consideration as described herein, the sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties intending to be legally bound, hereby agree and 
commit as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Background.  The above Background is incorporated into and made a part of this 
Agreement. 

 



{00988169;v1}4 
 

2. The Project.  The Authority intends to demolish the existing Bridge, remove the 
existing water and gas line attached to the existing Bridge, install and remove a 
Temporary Utility Structure for installation of a temporary water line during 
construction, reconstruct a new Bridge over the SEPTA Route 100 line and re-attach 
a new water and gas line to the new Bridge as shown in Exhibit A and defined as 
the "Work Scope". 
 

3. This Agreement. Support Services have been estimated and presented in Exhibit C 
and additional SEPTA Work is preliminarily expected to include relocation of 
existing utility wires along the track line, however the parties recognize that further 
additional SEPTA Work may be identified as detailed plans progress and as the 
Authority Work is undertaken.  SEPTA will perform that work in accordance with 
the commitments included herein.  The Authority will pay for additional SEPTA 
Work at the rate provided in Exhibit C. 

 
4. The Authority’s Performance of Authority Work. 

  
A. The Authority shall require and ensure that all of its employees, agents, 

contractors, subcontractors, representatives, and other invitees that may 
come within the ROW shall have completed SEPTA’s Roadway Workers 
Protection Safety Class within the 12 months preceding the Commencement 
Date. 

 
B. The Authority is fully responsible for its employees and contractors, if any, 

and shall take all steps necessary to ensure that its employees and contractors 
comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and of any ROE 
Permit applicable to the work under this Project.  The Authority agrees that 
its access to, entry upon and use of the SEPTA Premises is done at the 
Authority’s own risk. 

 
C. The Authority shall perform all Authority Work in a manner that is lawful, 

safe, and in full and precise compliance with all applicable law, statutes, 
regulations, ordinances and rules. The Authority shall ensure that proper 
emergency medical services are readily available or accessible during the 
performance of the Project.  The Authority will take all appropriate safety 
measures to protect and ensure the safety of the Authority, its contractors and 
agents, SEPTA, and the public in general. 

 
D. All activity and work conducted by the Authority on the ROW and on 

SEPTA Premises shall be performed strictly in accordance with the Work 
Scope, and in a manner that is in compliance with SEPTA’s safety rules, 
regulations, bulletins and notices, which apply to or are relevant to SEPTA, 



{00988169;v1}5 
 

the ROW and the SEPTA Premises.  The Designee of the Chief Engineer 
shall provide to the Authority the relevant SEPTA safety rules, and notices.  

 
E. The Authority shall not perform on the SEPTA Premises, or the ROW, any 

activities outside of the Work Scope, nor shall the Authority access SEPTA 
property outside of the Premises without SEPTA’s permission, nor access 
the SEPTA Premises outside of the TCE Term.  The Authority can only 
continue to perform Authority Work on the SEPTA Premises or the ROW 
after the completion of the Agreement Term upon receiving SEPTA’s written 
approval of an extension of the Agreement Term. 

 
F. The Authority shall not allow the Authority Work to disrupt or interfere with 

SEPTA’s operations, property or facilities.  The Authority and its invitees 
shall not enter or access the ROW unless done so in complete compliance 
with the Agreement. The Authority will not perform any Work within the 25 
foot ROW area without the railway protections, as determined by SEPTA, in 
place.  The Authority will not leave any material or equipment unattended 
within the 25-foot ROW area. 

 
G. SEPTA is not and shall not be responsible for any costs that the Authority 

incurs in connection with the Authority Work, the Project or this Agreement. 
 
5. Term.   The term of this Agreement (“Agreement Term”) shall begin on the 

Effective Date and shall end the earlier of (i) the date that Project is completed and 
all completion requirements under the Agreement have been satisfied; or (ii) two 
years after the Effective Date; provided that such two year period may be extended 
in the event completion of the Project is delayed for reasons beyond the Authority’s 
reasonable control (in which case the extension shall be equal to the period of delay). 

 
6. Authority Contractor - Right-of-Entry.  The Authority hereby commits to have its 

contractor(s) apply for a Right-of-Entry (“ROE”) permit and enter into a ROE 
agreement with SEPTA prior to entering on SEPTA Premises to commence any 
work for the Project.  SEPTA hereby Agrees to waive the $1,000 ROE application 
fee for the Authority’s contractor(s) for this Project. 
 

7. SEPTA Services. 

A. In support of the Authority’s reconstruction of the Bridge, SEPTA shall 
perform the Support Services, which generally include engineering review, 
coordination, planning, flagging and on-site engineering oversight, which are 
described and in more detail in Exhibit C.  

 
 B. The Authority recognizes that it cannot, and commits that it shall not, 



{00988169;v1}6 
 

perform any construction or construction-related tasks or activities that need 
to be performed on or with SEPTA transit infrastructure or facilities that are 
other than actual components of the Bridge (generally and collectively, 
herein “Transit Facilities”).  The Authority recognizes that only SEPTA can 
perform tasks, activities or work on or with Transit Facilities.  In the event 
that work on or with Transit Facilities is or becomes a necessary part of the 
Project, the Authority will work with SEPTA to plan and schedule such work 
to be performed by SEPTA and, at the discretion of SEPTA, SEPTA 
contractors.   

 
 C. SEPTA shall perform all SEPTA Services in a diligent and workmanlike 

manner, and so as to enable the Authority to complete the Project in 
accordance with the Project schedule and not unreasonably delay the Project 
schedule. 

 
 D. SEPTA and the Authority agree that they and their respective contractors 

shall cooperate with each other at all relevant times so as to coordinate 
respective schedules and to enable the Authority Work and the SEPTA 
Services to be performed properly, efficiently, on schedule, and consistent 
with the established Project plans. 
 

8. Reimbursable Costs, Invoicing and Payments. 

 A. The Authority agrees to reimburse SEPTA for the SEPTA Services 
performed for the Project. The Authority’s reimbursement to SEPTA for 
service performed under this agreement at actual cost shall be in accordance 
with the provisions of the Federal Highway Administration (“FHWA”) 
Federal-Aid Policy Guide (23 CFR) and any supplements and amendments 
thereto. 

 
 B. SEPTA shall bill the Authority no more frequently than once per month for 

all Reimbursable Costs associated with the SEPTA Services.  
 
 C. The Authority is to pay SEPTA within 45 days of receipt of invoice. 
 
9. Soil Disturbance. 

 A. If at any time, the Authority realizes that Soil Disturbance beyond that shown 
in Exhibit A may become necessary, The Authority will notify SEPTA and 
provide a revised Work Scope that explains the details of the Soil 
Disturbance activities that may be needed.  The Authority recognizes that 
SEPTA may need to amend this Agreement to address any such Soil 
Disturbance beyond that shown in Exhibit A, and the Authority commits that 



{00988169;v1}7 
 

it will not undertake any Soil Disturbance activity beyond that shown in 
Exhibit A until it receives written approval from SEPTA and formally 
accepts in writing the additional terms and conditions that SEPTA deems 
necessary regarding Soil Disturbance by the Authority beyond that shown in 
Exhibit A. 

10. Limitations and Revocations. 
 

A. Under no circumstances shall this Agreement be construed as a grant of any 
right, title or interest of any kind in the Premises or in any other property of 
SEPTA. 
 

B. If the Authority violates any material term or condition of this Agreement, 
or breaches any commitment memorialized herein, SEPTA has the right to 
revoke the TCE and the Authority must cease its access and use of the 
SEPTA Premises until such time that the violation and/or breach is remedied. 

 
11. Insurance.  The Authority and its contractors shall secure, maintain and provide to 

SEPTA evidence of insurance coverages as specified in Exhibit D, which is attached 
hereto and incorporated herein.  The Authority commits that it and its contractor 
shall maintain the required insurances for the duration of the Permit Term. 

12. Liability. The Authority shall defend, save and hold harmless, and fully indemnify 
SEPTA and its officers, employees, and agents from any claims, suits or actions of 
whatsoever nature, loss, expenses or costs, including attorney fees, judgments, 
damages or liability arising from injury or death to persons or property, by reason 
of, and to the extent caused by, the negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct 
of the Authority, its contractors, employees or agents under or in connection with 
or arising out of any activities pursuant to this Agreement.  Nothing in this Section 
8 requires the Authority or its insurer to indemnify SEPTA for claims of personal 
injury or property damage caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of 
SEPTA.  This duty shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  

13. Governing Law and Jurisdiction.  This Agreement is governed by and is to be 
interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania.  All matters, disputes, claims, litigation, or any other proceedings, 
in connection with this Agreement, shall be brought and resolved, except for 
enforcement, in the state or federal courts located in the City of Philadelphia, 
Pennsylvania, irrespective of any procedural rules or laws related to venue and 
forum non conveniens.  The Parties expressly consent to such jurisdiction and 
venue, and waive any objection to such jurisdiction or venue and all claims of 
inconvenience or lack of personal jurisdiction.  The Parties represent and 



{00988169;v1}8 
 

acknowledge that their position on jurisdiction and venue described above is 
reasonable and has been freely and voluntarily made. 

 
14. Pennsylvania Prevailing Wage Act: SEPTA is an agency and instrumentality of the 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and as such SEPTA complies with the 
Pennsylvania Prevailing Wage Act (the “Wage Act”; Act of August 15, 1961, P.L. 
987, as amended, 43 P.S. §§ 165-1-165-17; 34 Pa. Code §§ 9.101-9.112) with regard 
to paying its employees.  SEPTA shall be responsible for obtaining correct guidance 
on whether or not prevailing wages are applicable to the work performed under this 
agreement.  SEPTA can obtain prevailing wage rates and information about 
compliance through the following: 

 
Bureau of Labor Law Compliance 1301 Labor & Industry Building Seventh 
&Forster Streets Harrisburg, PA  17120-0019; 717-787-4671; www.dli.state.pa.us. 

SEPTA shall be responsible for complying with the applicable aspects of the Wage 
Act, such as maintaining documentation, certified payrolls, etc. 

15. Record Keeping:  SEPTA agrees that the Authority and/or its designees shall have 
the right to access and inspect SEPTA’s records relating to the construction phase 
of the Project at any time during reasonable business hours during the construction 
phase of the Project and for three (3) years after final billing. 

 
16. Inspection and Approval of Work:  That materials furnished and work performed 

under this Agreement will be subject at all times to the inspection and approval of 
the Authority, the PUC and the FHWA and/or their duly authorized representatives. 

 
17. PUC Proceedings and Compliance: 

 
A. Without admissions, waiver or prejudice as to SEPTA’s position regarding 

the PUC’s jurisdiction over SEPTA with regard to the Bridge, the Parties 
agree they will testify in any proceeding before the PUC in accordance with 
the terms of this Agreement and will submit this Agreement to the PUC with 
the request it be incorporated into any order issued by PUC. 
 

B. Should there be any conflict between this Agreement and any order of the 
PUC, the Parties agree to be bound by the lawful orders of the PUC on 
matters within its jurisdiction or the final determination by any proper Court 
on an appeal from said order or orders.  In the event the PUC’s order or final 
determination on appeal from said order as aforesaid directs SEPTA to bear 
its own costs for SEPTA’s Work for which Authority initially reimbursed 
SEPTA, SEPTA agrees to promptly return such reimbursement to the 
Authority.  Further, if sums initially paid to SEPTA exceed the actual cost 



{00988169;v1}9 
 

for SEPTA’s Work, SEPTA agrees to return within sixty (60) days all excess 
payments to the Authority 

 
18. Federal Funding:  The Project is subject to and contingent upon the approval for 

eligibility of Federal funds by the FHWA and failure to obtain such approval shall 
relieve the Parties of their obligations under this Agreement. 

 
19. Cancellation, Abandonment, or Revision of the Project:  It is further agreed that if, 

for any reason, the Project shall be canceled, abandoned, or revised, in such a 
manner that the work described in this Agreement should be no longer required, in 
the opinion of the Pennsylvania Secretary of Transportation, then in such event, the 
only amount which will be payable to SEPTA will be the actual and related indirect 
costs of the work actually completed at the time of notification by the Authority of 
the said cancellation, abandonment or revision, plus any additional expenses 
incurred by SEPTA in restoring its system to normal operation conditions. 

 
20. Restrictions on Lobbying: Public Law 101-121, Section 319, 31 U.S. Code Section 

1352, prohibits the recipient or any lower tier sub-recipients of a Federal contract, 
grant, loan or cooperative agreement from expending Federal funds to pay any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence a Federal agency or Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal 
grant or loan or the entering into of any cooperative agreement.  SEPTA agrees to 
execute and subsequently comply with the Certification of Restrictions on Lobbying 
attached hereto, incorporated herein, and marked as Exhibit E. 

 
21. Amendments and Modifications:  No alterations or variations to this Agreement 

shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by all Parties. Amendments to this 
Agreement shall be accomplished through a formal written document signed by all 
Parties with the same formality as this Agreement. 

 
22. Titles Not Controlling:  Titles of paragraphs are for reference only, and shall not be 

used to construe the language in this Agreement. 
 
23. Severability:  The provisions of this Agreement shall be severable. If any phrase, 

clause, sentence or provision of this Agreement is declared to be contrary to the 
Constitution of Pennsylvania or of the United States or of the laws of the 
Commonwealth the applicability thereof to any government, agency, person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the validity of the remainder of this Agreement and the 
applicability thereof to any government, agency, person or circumstance shall not be 
affected thereby. 

 
24. No Waiver:  Either Party may elect not to enforce its rights and remedies under this 

Agreement in the event of a breach by the other Party of any term or condition of 



{00988169;v1}10 
 

this Agreement.  In any event, the failure by either Party to enforce its rights and 
remedies under this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent 
breach of the same or any other term or condition of this Agreement. 

 
25. Independence of the Parties:  It is understood by and between the Parties that nothing 

contained herein is intended or shall be construed to, in any respect, create or 
establish the relationship of partners between SEPTA and the Authority, or as 
constituting the Authority as the representative or general agent of SEPTA for any 
purpose whatsoever. 

 
26. Assignment:  The instant Agreement may not be assigned by SEPTA, either in whole 

or in part, without the written consent of the Authority. 
 
27. Third Party Beneficiary Rights:  The Parties to this Agreement understand that this 

Agreement does not create or intend to confer any rights in or on persons or entities 
not a party to this Agreement. 

 
28. Notices:  All notices and reports arising out of, or from, the provisions of this 

Agreement shall be in writing and given to the Parties at the address provided under 
this Agreement, either by regular mail, facsimile, e-mail, or delivery in person. 

 
29. Integration and Merger:  This Agreement, when executed, approved and delivered, 

shall constitute the final, complete and exclusive Agreement between the Parties 
containing all the terms and conditions agreed on by the Parties.  All representations, 
understandings, promises and agreements pertaining to the subject matter of this 
Agreement made prior to or at the time this Agreement is executed are superseded 
by this Agreement unless specifically accepted by any other term or provision of this 
Agreement. There are no conditions precedent to the performance of this Agreement 
except as expressly set forth herein. 

 
30. Notices. All notices, demands or requests required or permitted under this Agreement shall 

be in writing and shall be personally delivered or sent by certified United States mail 
(postage prepaid, return receipt requested), overnight express mail or courier service 
providing for receipted delivery addressed as follows: 

 
   If to SEPTA to:  Director of Civil Engineering 
      Southeastern Pennsylvania Transportation Authority 
      1234 Market Street, 13th Floor 
      Philadelphia Pennsylvania 19107 
       
   If to the Authority to: Upper Merion Transportation Authority 
      Attn: Authority Executive Secretary 
      Township Building 
      175 West Valley Forge Road 



{00988169;v1}11 
 

      King of Prussia, PA 19406 
 

or to such other person at such other address as a party shall designate by like notice to the 
other Party.  Unless otherwise provided herein, all notices hereunder shall be deemed to be 
given when received or personally delivered. 

 
31 Counterparts: The instant Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which 
together shall be deemed one and the same instrument. 

 
32. Effective Date: Except as otherwise stated above, this Agreement is effective as of 

the date of the last signature below. 
 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused the above terms to be executed and 
attested by their proper officials, pursuant to due and legal action authorizing the same to 
be done, the day and year first above written. 
 

 

ATTEST: SOUTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 

____________________________ By:         

Signature   Date  Signature     Date 

 

Carol R. Looby, Secretary  Jeffrey D. Knueppel, General Manager 

 

  Approved as to Form:  

  _____________________________  

  Office of General Counsel, SEPTA   

 

 

 



{00988169;v1}12 
 

ATTEST:   UPPER MERION TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 

 

____________________________ By:         

Signature   Date  Signature     Date 

 

 

____________________________         

Title      Title 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



{00988169;v1}13 
 

ATTEST:    MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

 

____________________________ By:         

Signature   Date  Signature     Date 

 

 

____________________________         

Title      Title 

 

  



{00988169;v1}14 
 

Exhibit A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



{00988169;v1}15 
 

Exhibit B 

 



{00988169;v1}16 
 

p 



{00988169;v1}17 
 

 



{00988169;v1}18 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



{00988169;v1}19 
 

Exhibit C  

 

 

 



{00988169;v1}20 
 

 



{00988169;v1}21 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



{00988169;v1}22 
 

Exhibit D 

RISK MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT 

1. Worker’s Compensation Insurance: As required by the applicable laws and 
statutory requirements of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.  Said insurance shall 
include Employer’s Liability Coverage for $500,000 per accident/disease. 

2. Commercial General Liability Insurance: $2,000,000 combined single limit 
(bodily injury and property damage) per occurrence. 

3. Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance: $1,000,000 combined single limit 
(bodily injury and property damage) per occurrence. 

4. Railroad Protective Liability Insurance: $2,000,000 combined single limit 
(bodily injury and property damage) per occurrence and $6,000,000 annual aggregate. 

5. Pollution Liability Insurance: $5 million per occurrence with a $10 million 
annual aggregate, written on coverage for CG 00-39. 

 
 

**** 

 
The Upper Merion Transportation Authority (“Authority”) will act to have SEPTA 

named as additional insured on all required commercial general liability insurance and 
automobile liability insurance and the named insured on the Railroad Protective Liability 
Insurance. 

SEPTA reserves the right to change the insurance Requirements. SEPTA will give the 
Authority sixty (60) days’ written notice of any change thereto. 

  



{00988169;v1}23 
 

Exhibit E 

LOBBYING CERTIFICATION FORM 

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans and Cooperative Agreements 

 The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, 
or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any 
federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the 
entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, 
amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 
agreement. 

 
2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to 

any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee 
of a member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-
LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities, in accordance with its instructions. 

 
3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the 

award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, 
and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-
recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

 
 This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 
placed when this transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification 
is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed under Section 
1352, Title 31, U.S. Code.  Any person who fails to file the required certification shall 
be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for 
such failure. 
 
 
SIGNATURE: _______________________________________________________ 
 
 
TITLE: _____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
DATE: _____________________________________________________________ 
 
Enclosure 1 to Management Directive 305.16 Amended   
 Page 1 of 1 
























































































































	Agenda – 20191113 – November 13, 2019
	Minutes – 20191009 – October 9, 2019
	THOMAS KOHLER
	CHAIRMAN

	Requisitions 111319ta
	SEPTA Letter of Intent - Reimbursement Agreement for UMTA's Reconstruction of the East Church Road Bridge
	Reimb Agmt-Church Rd Bridge- Upper Merion- PennDOT- SEPTA draft 6 JRN 9-16-19
	30. UNoticesU. All notices, demands or requests required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally delivered or sent by certified United States mail (postage prepaid, return receipt requested), overnight express mai...

	EXHIBIT A
	S-1
	S-2
	S-5
	S-6
	S-7
	S-9
	S-11
	S-12
	S-13
	S-14
	S-15
	S-16
	S-17
	S-18
	S-19
	S-20
	S-22
	S-24
	S-25
	S-26
	S-27
	S-28
	S-29
	S-30
	S-31
	S-32
	S-33
	S-34
	S-35
	S-36
	S-37
	S-38
	S-39
	S-40
	S-41
	S-42
	S-43
	S-44
	S-45
	S-49
	S-50
	S-51
	S-57
	S-58
	S-59




